
VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
Board of Directors 

AGENDA 
Meeting Location  Regular Meeting 
“Smart Space” Office Center Wednesday, February 8, 2023 
450 South Melrose Drive 10:00 A.M. 
Vista, CA  92081 
 

BUSINESS SESSION – REGULAR AGENDA 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. ROLL CALL  

 
3. MOTION WAIVING READING IN FULL OF ALL RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES  
 
4. OPEN DISCUSSION WITH THE BOARD (Public Comment) 

The Board invites District residents and others in attendance to address the Board on any matter of 
public concern related to the District’s business. 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
a. Board of Directors Minutes 

Approve the Board of Directors minutes of January 11, 2023 
b. Payroll Register 

Approve Payroll paid on February 7, 2023 $7,081.25 
Approve Payroll Taxes paid on paid on February 7, 2023 $541.72 
    $7,622.97 

  

Americans with Disabilities Act:  If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please 
contact the Board Clerk 760-688-7588.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District 
to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to the meeting. 
 
Rules for Addressing Board of Directors:  Members of the audience who wish to address the Board of 
Directors are requested to complete a form near the entrance of the meeting room and submit it to the 
Board Clerk.  Any person may address the Board on any item of Board business or Board concern.  The 
Board cannot act on any matter presented during Public Comment, but can refer it to staff for review 
and possible discussion at a future meeting.  As permitted by State Law, the Board may act on matters 
of an urgent nature or which require immediate attention. 
 
Agendas:  Agenda packets are available for public inspection 72 hours prior to scheduled meetings 
posted on the District’s website  www.vistafireprotectiondistrict.org or by contacting the Clerk of the 
Board at krannals@vistafpd.org 

All items listed on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion without 
discussion unless Board Members, Staff or the public requests removal of an item for separate discussion and 
action.  The Board of Directors has the option of considering items removed from the Consent Calendar 
immediately or under Continuing Business. 

http://www.vistafireprotectiondistrict.org/
mailto:krannals@vistafpd.org


Page 2 of 4 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2023 

c. Accounts Payable  
Approve Accounts Payable Check 4022 thru 4030 to be paid February 8, 2023 $9,133.23 

 Auto withdrawal(s) paid on February 1, 2023 $802.95 
       $9,936.18 

d. Receive and File - Information 
i) Fire Department Reports 

(1) District Fire Inspector 
(2) Fire Marshal  
(3) Fire Chief 
(4) Fire Department Performance Report – November – December 2022 

e. Ad Hoc Committee Reports 
i) Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

f. Administrative Manager’s Report 
g. Finance 

i) Profit & Loss Statement – January 31, 2023 
(1) General Fund 
(2) Fire Mitigation Fund 

ii) Balance Sheet (Combined) – January 31, 2023 
(1) General Fund & Fire Mitigation Fund 

 
6. ORAL REPORT(s) 

a. Fire Chief/Deputy Chief 
b. Fire Marshal 
c. Administrative Manager 
d. Legal 

 
7. CONTINUING BUSINESS 

a. Resolution No. 2023-02 - Eighth Supplemental Agreement 
To discuss and/or adopt Resolution No. 2023-02 – entitled A Resolution of the Board of Directors of 
the Vista Fire Protection, County of San Diego, California, Approving Eighth Supplemental Agreement 
between the Vista Fire Protection District, and the City of Vista for Fire Inspection Services. Staff 
Report 23-03 
Action Requested:  Adopt 
b. Sixth Supplemental Agreement 
To discuss and/or provide an update regarding the potential overpayment of costs paid by the Vista 
Fire Protection District and The City of Vista for Fire Inspection Services. 
Action Requested:  Information/Direction 

 
8. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Resolution No. 2023-03 
To discuss and/or adopt Resolution No. 2023-03 – entitled A Resolution of the Board of Directors of 
the Vista Fire Protection District Approving the Sale of Surplus Real Property Located at 2319 
Panoramic, Vista, California, 92084 to Buyers Praveen Kumar Koratala and Sree Lakshmi Koratala. 
Action Requested:  Adopt 
b. Annual Weed Abatement Letter 
The Fire Marshal will discuss and solicit feedback from the Board for the annual weed abatement 
letter proposed to be sent to property owners within the Fire District.  Staff Report 23-04 
Action Requested: Information and/or direction 

  



Page 3 of 4 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2023 
 

c. Board Policies 
To discuss and/or approve the following board policies: 

1. 1050 – Training, Education, Conferences 
2. 1051 – Reimbursement Policy – Travel and Expenses 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Approve 
d. Budget Authorization(s) 

i) To discuss and/or approve contract for Managed Technology Services with RGM Consulting 
and authorize expenditure Staff Report 23-05 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Approve 

ii) To discuss and/or approve contract for website update and refresh with RGM Consulting 
and authorize expenditure Staff Report 23-06 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Approve 
iii) To discuss and/or approve expense to Aztec Landscaping to repair the drainage along 

emergency access roads Staff Report 23-07 
ACTION REQUESTED:  Approve 

 
9. DIRECTORS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS & WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

Directors are invited to make announcements and share written communications.  
 

10. MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT
  



Page 4 of 4 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2023 

VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, February 8, 2023 10:00 am PT 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 
I certify that on February 3, 2023 a copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on the District’s website and 
near the meeting place of the Board of Directors of Vista Fire Protection District, said time being at least 
72 hours in advance of the meeting of the Board of Directors (Government Code Section 54954.2) 
 
Executed at Rancho Santa Fe, California on February 3, 2023 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Karlena Rannals 
Board Clerk 
 



VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
Regular Board of Directors Meeting 

Minutes – January 11, 2023 
 
 
These minutes reflect the order in which items appeared on the meeting agenda and do not necessarily reflect the order in which items were 
considered. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA  
President Elliott called to order the regular meeting of the Vista Fire Protection District Board of Directors at 5:00 
PM at the “Smart Space” conference room located at 450 South Melrose Drive, Vista CA. 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
Director Gomez led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. Roll Call 

Directors Present:  Elliott, Fougner, Gomez, Miller, Ploetz (arrived at 5:01)   
Directors Present via Zoom: None 
Directors Absent:  None 
Staff Present: Karlena Rannals, Administrative Manager, and Fred Pfister, Legal Counsel 

 
3. Motion waiving reading in full of all Resolutions/Ordinances 

MOTION BY DIRECTOR GOMEZ, SECOND BY DIRECTOR MILLER, and CARRIED 5 AYES; 0 NOES; 0 ABSENT; 0 
ABSTAIN to waive reading in full of all resolutions and/or ordinances.   
 

4. Open Discussion with the Board (Public Comment)  
No one requested to speak to the Board.  President Elliott reported that the following students from Rancho 
Buena Vista High School  were in attendance as a requirement of their Economics Class: 

1. Zak Montero 
2. Edwin Jimenez 

 
5. Consent Calendar  

MOTION BY DIRECTOR PLOETZ, SECOND BY DIRECTOR MILLER, CARRIED 5 AYES; 0 NOES; 0 ABSENT; 0 ABSTAIN 
to approve the consent calendar, with the removal of Item 5.c. – Accounts Payable. 
a. Board of Directors Minutes 

i. Board of Directors minutes of December 14, 2022 
b. Payroll Register 

i. Payroll Checks 4010 thru 4014 paid on December 31, 2022 $4,957.50 
ii. Payroll taxes paid on December 31, 2022  379.26 

 Total $5,336.76 
d. Receive and File 

i. Fire Department Reports 
1. District Fire Inspector’s 
2. Fire Marshal 
3. Fire Chief 
4. Fire Department Performance Report – November 2022 

  



Minutes 
Vista Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
January 11, 2023 
Page 2 of 5 
 

e. Ad Hoc Committee Reports 
i. Community Wildfire Protection Plan 

f. Administrative Manager’s Report 
g. Finance 

ii. Investment Portfolio Summary – December 31, 2022 
 

Director Fougner requested to discuss the Accounts Payable – specifically the invoice payable to the City of 
Vista.  While he acknowledges that the amount invoiced is correct, he would like to see some type of 
certification that the amounts invoiced by the vendor is correct.  In particular, since the District sends large 
sums of money for payment of emergency services.  Staff agreed to develop a certification form to include with 
the accounts payable summary sheet to ensure board members the amounts paid are accurate. 
 
MOTION BY DIRECTOR MILLER, SECOND BY DIRECTOR PLOETZ, CARRIED 5 AYES; 0 NOES; 0 ABSENT; 0 ABSTAIN 
to approve Consent Calendar, Item 5.c. – Accounts Payable. 

 
6. Oral Report(s) 

a. Fire Chief/Deputy Chief – Deputy Chief Usher was unable to attend; however, Ms. Rannals announced on 
behalf of Chief Usher that the interim Fire Chief had been selected.  He name is Chief Roy Palmer who 
spent the majority of his career in Oregon working his way up from Firefighter, and retired as their Fire 
Chief.  His hire date is effective January 17, 2023. 

b. Fire Marshal – Chief Usher was unable to attend 
c. Ad Hoc Committee Reports 

i. Community Wildfire Protection Plan – Director Ploetz reported that a meeting is planned with Chief 
Usher later in the month 

ii. Emergency Access Roads – no report 
d. Administrative Manager – Ms. Rannals 

i. She reminded board members to complete the ethics training and provide her a copy of the certificate 
of completion. 

ii. She requested that the required harassment training be completed by February 28, 2023. 
iii. All board members should anticipate a notice from the County of San Diego about the required Form 

700 filing around February 1st 
iv. Effective with tax apportionment #6 (January 2023), the County will deposit the tax proceeds directly 

to the County pool, instead of Wells Fargo.  This will allow the funds to accrue at a higher interest rate 
until paid. 

v. Services for Ms. Joan Thurman (the District’s former CPA) are planned for January 28, 2023. 
e. Legal - Mr. Pfister – no report 

 
7. Public Hearing 

a. Ordinance No. 2023-02 
President Elliott opened and closed the public hearing.  Ms. Rannals informed the Board that no written 
comments were submitted.   

 
 
 



Minutes 
Vista Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
January 11, 2023 
Page 3 of 5 
 
8.  Continuing Business 

a. Ordinance No. 2023-02 
Ms. Rannals informed the Board that no changes were made to the ordinance since its introduction at the 
December meeting.  This ordinance establishes the collection of fees for services provided.  It is congruent 
with the City of Vista fee schedule.  She reports that the Ordinance would become effective February 26, 2023.   
 
MOTION BY DIRECTOR MILLER, SECOND BY DIRECTOR PLOETZ, to adopt Ordinance No. 2023-02 entitled An 
Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the Vista Fire Protection District Adopting Fees for Service by Reference 
to the California Health and Safety Code Section 13916 and Section 13919 and approved on the following roll 
call vote: 
 AYES:  Elliott, Fougner, Gomez, Miller, Ploetz 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 
 
President Elliott requested that the board clerk publish a Notice of Ordinance Adoption pursuant to all 
applicable codes. 
 
b. Eighth Supplemental Agreement 
President Elliott reports that this matter will be deferred to the next meeting, since Deputy Chief Usher was 
unable to attend.   
 
c. Sixth Supplemental Agreement 
President Elliott reports that this matter will be deferred to the next meeting, since Deputy Chief Usher was 
unable to attend.  However, he reported that he and Director Fougner had a constructive conversation 
discussing the potential overpayment for services.  Chief Usher has some ideas on how to resolve the matter. 
 

9. New Business 
a. Resolution No. 2023-01 
Ms. Rannals reported that the resolution submitted for consideration changes the regular meeting time for 
the Board of Directors meetings.  The new meeting time will be at 10 am, continuing on the second 
Wednesday of each month.   
 
MOTION BY DIRECTOR MILLER, SECOND BY DIRECTOR GOMEZ, to adopt Resolution No. 2023-01 entitled A 
Resolution of the Vista Fire Protection District Establishing Time and Placer of Regular Meetings, Holiday and 
Emergencies and approved on the following roll call vote: 
 AYES:  Elliott, Fougner, Gomez, Miller, Ploetz 
 NOES:  None 
 ABSTAIN: None 
 ABSENT: None 

  



Minutes 
Vista Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
January 11, 2023 
Page 4 of 5 
 

b. Changes to Remote Meeting Procedures and Brown Act Update 
Mr. Pfister summarized his memorandum included in the meeting packet.  He informed the Board that the 
Board has two options, 1) conduct a remote meeting in the way they were held before COVID-19; or 2) hold 
a remote meeting under the new requirements of AB2449.  Should the Board decide to adopt a resolution to 
hold a meeting under the new requirements (AB2449) there are costs implications as the procedure entails 
that the agenda under this option must contain the address of the physical location within the District 
where at least three (3) Directors will meet, and it must also contain the dial-in information for the 
audiovisual platform (e.g., “Zoom”). This option offers the opportunity for public participation.  
 
The Board requested that the Administrative Manager research the pros and cons, cost and complications 
of implementing the requirements of AB 2449.  She will target a report back to the Board for the March 
meeting. 
 
c. Budget Authorization  
Ms. Rannals summarized the staff report provided.  She reports that as a member of the California Special 
District Association, she learned of the CSDA’s Special District Leadership Academy that will be held in La 
Quinta, CA.  She reports that since the conference was not budgeted, she needed approval for staff and board 
members to attend and authorize the expenditures.  The Board discussed the benefits of attending and agreed 
to support the training. 
 
MOTION BY DIRECTOR MILLER, SECOND BY DIRECTOR GOMEZ, CARRIED 5 AYES; 0 NOES; 0 ABSENT; 0 ABSTAIN 
to approve the attendance and expenditures for up three participants (two board members and the 
Administrative Manager) to attend the CSDA’s Special District Leadership Academy Conference that will be 
held at the Embassy Suites La Quinta Hotel & Spa February 26 – March 1, 2023. 
 
d. Call for Nominations  
President Elliott reviewed the letter from LAFCO soliciting interest from any board member interested in 
submitting their name as a candidate to serve on the LAFCO Board of Directors.  No board member expressed 
any interest to self-nominate.  There was no action taken. 
 

10. Directors’ Announcements & Written Communications 
Director Miller:  informed the Board that thru conversation with the Administrative Manager, she has 
suggested that any board member interested in a “field trip” to the 9-1-1 center (North County Dispatch JPA) 
in Rancho Santa Fe she can arrange for a tour.  During the discussion, four board members expressed their 
interest and the Administrative Manager will make arrangements for two tours (two board members each) 
and target March 2023.  
Director Gomez:  announced that he will not be able to attend the February meeting due to a planned vacation. 
 

10-minute recess 
  



Minutes 
Vista Fire Protection District Board of Directors 
January 11, 2023 
Page 5 of 5 
 
11. Closed Session 

Pursuant to the following section, the board met in closed session from 6:51 – 7:55 pm to discuss the 
following: 

Conference with negotiators for the following real property (§54956.8) 
2319 Panoramic, Lot 1, Vista 
Negotiating Parties: Jim Elliott, Director; Read Miller, Director 
Under Negotiation: Both Price and Terms of Payment 
All board members listed and Karlena Rannals, Administrative Manager, Fred Pfister, Legal Counsel and 
Stephanie Cavanaugh, Realty Masters participated in this discussion. 

 
Upon reconvening, the District’s attorney Mr. Pfister announced that that a counter offer for the property at 
2319 Panoramic, Lot 1, Vista approved and direction was given to the negotiating parties and the broker.  The 
motion was made by Director Gomez, second by Director Ploetz, CARRIED 4/1 (Miller). 
 

12. Motion for Adjournment 
MOTION BY DIRECTOR GOMEZ, SECOND BY DIRECTOR ELLIOTT, and CARRIED 5 AYES; 0 NOES; 0 ABSENT; 0 
ABSTAIN to adjourn at 7:59 pm.  

 
 

 
____________________________________________ _________________________________________  
Karlena Rannals James F. Elliott 
Board Clerk President 
 
 



Payment
No. Name Gross

Direct 
Deposit Rannals, Karlena 7,081.25$     

7,081.25$     
Employer Payroll Taxes
Federal (Social Security/Medicare) 541.72$        
State -$               

7,622.97$     

VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
PAYROLL REGISTER - JANUARY 2023 (Paid 02/07/23)



VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

January 31, 2023

COMMITTEE Check # PAYEE & ADDRESS                                DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
ASSIGNED

Admin Auto Withdrawal SmartSpace Vista (c/o SVN Vanguard) Space Rent - January 2023 $802.95
4455 Murphy Canyon Road, Ste 200 Paid 01-03-2023
San Diego, CA  92123

Accounts Payable (Auto withdrawal) $802.95

Admin 4022 ACAL ENGINEERING & SURVEYING, Inc. Recover and flag existing boundary monuments $500.00
211 Main St., Ste 205
Vista, CA  92084

Facilities 4023 AZTEC LANDSCAPING EMERGENCY ACCESS ROADS, INV# L2512 $2,082.00
7980 Lemon Grove Way PAR VALLEY, FABRY LANE, CATALINA & DEEB
Lemon Grove, Ca  91945 HARDELL LANE, EL PASO ALTO, January 2023

Fin 'l 4024 C.J. Brown & Company CPAs Preparation & Filing State Controller's Report (FY22) $500.00
10805 Holder Street, Suite 150

Admin Cypress, CA  90630

Fin 'l 4025 CSDA-San Diego Chapter (Treasurer) Dinner Meeting Registration $120.00
505 Garrett Avenue Ploetz/Rannals

Admin Chula Vista, CA  91910

Admin 4026 KARLENA RANNALS Reimbursement Office Set Up & Supplies $1,933.23

Fin 'l 4027 LITTLE YELLOW BUDDIES Serviced Hydrants - Qty 120 $3,240.00
13615 Fairlane Road

Admin Valley Center, CA  92082

Admin 4028 PANORAMIC ESTATES ROAD MAINTENANCE 2023 Road Maintenance Payment $395.00
2410 Panoramic Drive 2023 Road Maintenance Payment
Vista, CA  92084

Admin 4029 ROBERT FOUGNER Reimbursement Microsoft Office Subscription $288.00

Admin 4030 STREAMLINE Monthly Billing for Webhosting $75.00
P.O. Box 207561 INVOICE # 67009CA4-0027
Dallas, TX  75320-7561

Accounts Payable (Checks) $9,133.23
Admin PAYROLL:

See Payroll Register Employee & Directors $7,081.25
Fin 'l Auto Withdrawal U.S. TREASURY (PAYROLL TAX) FEDERAL FORM 941-EFT VIA EFTPS-DEPOSIT $541.72

January Payroll Total $7,622.97

Total District Expenses - January 2023 $17,559.15

Director DATE:  February 08, 2023

Administrative Manager DATE:  February 08, 2023

I have reviewed the Accounts Payable and have determined that sufficient funds are available.  The accounts 
payables listed are typical in nature for the VFPD.



Vista Fire Protection District 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  CRAIG USHER, DEPUTY CHIEF / FIRE MARSHAL 

SUBJECT:  MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT – FIRE 

DATE:   FEBRUARY 03, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Monthly Activity Summary (January 1 – 31, 2023) 
 
The following highlights the work activities for the reporting period: 
1. Evaluated all emergency roads. 
2. Inspected parcels and issued 0 hazardous fire area inspection notices. 
3. Had 6 face-to face opportunities out in the field and provided 0 Living with Wildfire brochure. 
4. Received a few public service requests that resulted in no field visits.  
5. Replaced no fire lane signs, found 1 Hazard sign with graffiti.  
 
Future Activity 
1. Assess all district emergency roads. 
2. Continue assessing fire hazard threats in the Vista Fire Protection District. 
3. Engage district residents in the field and answer their fire department related questions.  
4. Quickly respond to all citizen service requests regarding any hazardous conditions. 
5. Replace faded or illegible “Fire Lane” signs and document their location.  
6. Continue to monitor emergency response map book and GIS software tool inconsistencies. 



Vista Fire Protection District 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  CRAIG USHER, DEPUTY CHIEF 

SUBJECT:  MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT – FIRE MARSHAL 

DATE:   FEBRUARY 03, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Monthly Activity Summary (January 1 – 31, 2023) 
 
The following highlights the work activities for the reporting period: 
 
1. Projects:  No new projects of note 

 
2. Weed abatement forced clearing completed (9). 

 
3. Fire Code adoption by San Diego County for Board of Supervisors to be heard February 2023, will go 

into effect in March/April 2023.   
 

4. New Cal – Fire Hazard maps released—comment period extended.  
 

5. Vandalism to gate/chain at El Paso Alto gate repaired. 
 

6. Some signs showing fading/vandalism. 
 

 
 

 
 
Future Activity 
1.  District inspector duties discussion-February 2023 meeting, staff to discuss based on newest contract 

amendment. 



Vista Fire Protection District 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  CRAIG USHER, DEPUTY CHIEF  

SUBJECT:  MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT – FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT 

DATE:   FEBRUARY 08, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Monthly Activity Summary (January 1 – 31, 2023) 
 
The following highlights the work activities for the reporting period: 
1. Two firefighter/paramedics finishing background check, anticipate marc to start internal academy. 
2. One new fire inspector started on Feb. 6, 2023. We anticipate a second one to start in early March. 
3. Inspectors, one resigned, one on leave. 
4. City Manager—Round one interviews conducted, process moving forward. 
5. Fire Chief—Interim Chief Roy Palmer started Jan. 17th, please see brief intro below.  Full time position-

No updates.  
6. Station 3—Design team completed plan for offsite work.  We have a meeting in February to review 

rough preliminary drawings.  If possible, drawing to be displayed at March meeting. 
 

 
 
Roy Palmer joined the fire service in Roseburg, Oregon in 1973, after discharge from the USAF. He began 
his fire career working for Douglas County Fire District #2, where he spent 24 years working through the 
ranks to become Assistant Chief Fire Marshal. In 1996 he became the fire chief at Polk County Fire District 
#1, in Monmouth, Oregon, retiring in 2001. After retirement he continued his fire service as a consultant 
with ESCI out of Portland, Oregon, traveling around the US, doing mostly organization analysis. He started 
working for Special Districts of Oregon as a senior consultant in 2008, where he continued doing 
organization analysis, as well as serving as interim fire chief for a number of organizations. 
 
Roy is married to Janet, his wife of 30 years. He has two grown sons and 6 grandchildren, all living in Oregon. 
He has officiated football at the high school level for 47 years, serving as commissioner for the last 18 years. 
In his spare time, he can most often be found on the golf course.  
 



Page | 1 

 

                                                     

 
 

November 2022 Monthly Incident Report 
 

 
 
1. Monthly Activity Report 
 

A. Response Travel Time Report: Total calls of 1,321 of which 1,098 were 
counted in the response summary. Calls not counted in the Response Travel 
Time Report include: 

 
1. Non-priority responses 
2. Cancelled while responding 
3. Staged for sheriff. 
4. Responding to another jurisdiction for Automatic/Mutual Aid. 
5. No 'on scene' MST by responding apparatus. 
 
B. USR 5 year monthly comparison City and District * 
  

 
2. Response Time Chart 
 
3.          Total Response time >10 minutes in Fire District 
 
 

 
SW Nov  2022 Cover 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page | 2 

 

 
 

Monthly Activity Report 
 

November 2022 

  

 
* First unit on scene and emergency calls only-includes automatic aid units 

 

                 Automatic Aid                     Ambulance Transports 

  Current 
  month 

  Year-to- 
     date 

  Current  
  month 

 Year-to- 
    date 

    Given     371      3,879         Vista     731     7,943 

   Received      312      2,582 Other Agencies     213     2,039 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Response travel time last month (cad) 

 Total City District 

Number of incidents            1,033 884 149 

Number of urgent calls  848 733 115 

Average travel time  * 4:45 4:36 5:40 

75th fractal travel time  * 5:42 5:35 7:10 

90th fractal travel time  * 8:30 8:08 10:29 

Response travel time last 12 months (cad) 

          Total          City        District 

Number of incidents 13,002 11,098 1,904 

Number of urgent calls 9,723 8,388 1,335 

Average travel time  * 4:27 4:17 5:29 

75th fractal travel time  * 5:24 5:10 6:37 

90th fractal travel time  * 7:32 7:07 9:14 



Page | 3 

Nov 2022 

USR 5-year travel time monthly comparison -City 

 Urban Suburban Rural 

Year 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Responses Responses Responses 

2018 7,005 0:05:30 529 0:06:22 66 0:07:19 

 2019 7,123 0:05:38 529 0:06:19 61 0:07:03 

 2020 6,840 0:06:07 571 0:06:53 55 0:07:11 

 2021 6,760 0:05:38 560 0:06:11 56 0:07:13 

2022   Jan-Nov 6,056 0:05:59 521 0:06:39 50 0:07:16 

Δ YTD previous year +0:00:21 +0:00:28 +0:00:03 

USR 5-year travel time monthly comparison-District 

 Urban Suburban Rural 

Year 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Responses Responses Responses 

2018 826 0:05:51 358 0:07:28 153 0:09:38 

 2019 804 0:06:01 431 0:07:13 196 0:10:13 

 2020 736 0:06:21 344 0:07:45 200 0:10:02 

 2021 599 0:06:27 388 0:07:47 188 0:10:13 

2022   Jan-Nov 522 0:06:13 317 0:07:19 182 0:10:13 

Δ YTD previous year -0:00:14 -0:00:28 +0:00:00

Dispatched Incident volume types Nov Year to date 

Alarm 56 615 

Fire 99 1,151 

Medical and Other 1,144 12,914 

Total 1,321 14,952 



Page | 4 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 5 

 

October 2022 Response times >10 minutes in Vista Fire District 
Master Incident Number      Date and time                 Street Name               Response time    

 
2022-089995   11/7/2022 2:52 2911 Deeb Dr 11:48  

E122 from Quarters  
 
2022-091202   11/11/2022 5:04 LITTLE GOPHER CANYON RD / 
GOPHER CANYON RD 10:07 E123 from quarters  
 
2022-092511   11/15/2022 16:05 156 Robelini Dr 12:35  

E124 cleared other assignment to respond  
 
2022-095604   11/26/2022 10:25 2560 Tunrif Ct 10:12:39 
    E115 from quarters, E123 on another incident  
 
2022-096011   11/27/2022 19:42 3887 Buena Creek Rd   10:10:14 
    E122 from quarters  
 
2022-096045   11/27/2022 23:01 2090 Casa De Vereda   10:11:22 
    E123 from quarters  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 6 

 

 

 

 
 



Page | 1 

 

                                                     

 
 

December 2022 Monthly Incident Report 
 

 
 
1. Monthly Activity Report 
 

A. Response Travel Time Report: Total calls of 1,449 of which 1,146 were 
counted in the response summary. Calls not counted in the Response Travel 
Time Report include: 

 
1. Non-priority responses 
2. Cancelled while responding 
3. Staged for sheriff. 
4. Responding to another jurisdiction for Automatic/Mutual Aid. 
5. No 'on scene' MST by responding apparatus. 
 
B. USR 5 year monthly comparison City and District * 
  

 
2. Response Time Chart 
 
3.          Total Response time >10 minutes in Fire District 
 
 

 
SW Dec  2022 Cover 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page | 2 

 

 
 

Monthly Activity Report 
 

December 2022 

  

 
* First unit on scene and emergency calls only-includes automatic aid units 

 

                 Automatic Aid                     Ambulance Transports 

  Current 
  month 

  Year-to- 
     date 

  Current  
  month 

 Year-to- 
    date 

    Given     415      4,294         Vista     778     8,721 

   Received      329      3,451 Other Agencies     218     2,257 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Response travel time last month (cad) 

 Total City District 

Number of incidents            1,107 915 192 

Number of urgent calls  864 722 142 

Average travel time  * 4:47 4:34 5:42 

75th fractal travel time  * 5:43 5:23 7:00 

90th fractal travel time  * 8:23 8:10 10:06 

Response travel time last 12 months (cad) 

          Total          City        District 

Number of incidents 12,996 11,062 1,934 

Number of urgent calls 9,807 8,448 1,359 

Average travel time  * 4:29 4:19 5:30 

75th fractal travel time  * 5:27 5:13 6:41 

90th fractal travel time  * 7:40 7:15 9:20 



Page | 3 

Dec 2022 

USR 5-year travel time monthly comparison -City 

 Urban Suburban Rural 

Year 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Responses Responses Responses 

2018 7,005 0:05:30 529 0:06:22 66 0:07:19 

 2019 7,123 0:05:38 529 0:06:19 61 0:07:03 

 2020 6,840 0:06:07 571 0:06:53 55 0:07:11 

 2021 6,760 0:05:38 560 0:06:11 56 0:07:13 

2022   Jan-Dec 6,627 0:06:02 569 0:06:34 55 0:07:15 

Δ YTD previous year +0:00:04 +0:00:33 +0:00:02 

USR 5-year travel time monthly comparison-District 

 Urban Suburban Rural 

Year 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Unit 

90th 
Responses Responses Responses 

2018 826 0:05:51 358 0:07:28 153 0:09:38 

 2019 804 0:06:01 431 0:07:13 196 0:10:13 

 2020 736 0:06:21 344 0:07:45 200 0:10:02 

 2021 599 0:06:27 388 0:07:47 188 0:10:13 

2022   Jan-Dec 576 0:06:14 350 0:07:31 206 0:10:11 

Δ YTD previous year -0:00:13 -0:00:16 -0:00:02

Dispatched Incident volume types Dec Year to date 

Alarm 48 663 

Fire 92 1,243 

Medical and Other 1,280 14,194 

Total 1,449 16,401 



Page | 4 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 5 

 

December 2022 Response times >10 minutes in Vista Fire District 
Master Incident Number      Date and time                 Street Name               Response time    

 
 
2022-098936   12/7/2022 19:44 29354 Vista Valley         10:22 
    E11 RA121 from quarters  
 
2022-102995   12/20/2022 16:49 616 ESTRELITA DR      12:50 
    E122 from quarters  
 
2022-103675   12/22/2022 20:35 E Vista Wy / Gopher Canyon Rd 
 10:40   E123 from quarters  
 
 
2022-105071   12/27/2022 17:57 1721 Sugarbush Dr        11:01 
    E122 from quarters  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Vista Fire Protection District 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  CRAIG USHER, DEPUTY CHIEF 

SUBJECT:  ACTIVITY PROGRESS REPORT – CWPP Sub-Committee 

DATE:   FEBRUARY 3, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Monthly Activity Summary (January 1 – 31, 2023) 
 
The following items are from the above listed meeting and are not all inclusive of the scope of 
possibilities to make our residents aware of their surroundings, yet they provide guidance for 
staff to provide options when asked for advice. 
 

1. Contact the county to see if they have a plan for evacuation route clearance. 
a. Contact has been made, no timeline as of today, will be advised once a schedule 

is set.  
b.  (Completion Goal – 01-2023)—Completed, no current dates available, will 

follow up in 6 months or sooner if movement is anticipated.  No update as of 
1/31/2023. 
 

2. Have funding from either grants or the board to take care of the bigger projects. 
a. Fire Board CWPP members (Miller, Ploetz) to seek grants, or provide staff work 

for ideas and funding sources to accomplish Board goals.  
b. (Completion Goal – 06-2023) Not started yet. 

 
3. Have District Inspector provide the report to the community. 

a. Could be difficult to provide to all district residents, consider a mailer to all district 
residents directing them to the CWPP on the VPFD website.  

b. (Completion Goal – 01-2023)—Sub-committee to discuss at Dec. meeting.  
Discussed mailer to be sent to all district residents, will seek direction at Feb. 
board meeting. 
 

4. Have the CWPP on the website. 
a. Easy to accomplish, provide PDF version to Karlena to post for access. 
b. (Completion Goal – 11-2022)—Report ready for publication now, will discuss 

publishing at meeting with district manager in Nov.  Copy to be provided to 
District Manager for posting. 
 

5. Develop a plan for getting the CWPP out to the residents. 
a. Could be difficult to provide to all district residents, consider a mailer to all district 

residents directing them to the CWPP on the VPFD website. 
b. (Completion Goal – 01-2023) – Sub-committee to discuss at Dec. meeting.  

Discussed adding contact information to mailers, providing signage in district, 
both with QR code and website address. 



6. The long term is developing a plan for the actual fuel modification. 
a. Board/sub-committee to review CWPP and prioritize projects for opportunities to 

get the most out of their expenditures. 
b. (Completion Goal – 06-2023) Sub-committee discussed finding a suitable 

location for a “demonstration” location(s), in progress. 
 

7. Board members can start with having a public meeting in their neighborhood. 
a. Consider setting an open meeting and invite the public through district wide 

mailer. 
b. (Completion Goal – 01-2023).  Sub-committee decided on a public workshop in 

May, location to be determined. 
 

8. Set up a QR code for the document. 
a. Once the CWPP is set up on the VFPD website, a QR code can be established as a 

link to the document. 
b. (Completion Goal – 11-2022).  To be completed in conjunction with item #4. 

 
9. Provide the District Inspector with a larger/more detailed map.  

a. DC Usher to obtain maps from City GIS 
b. (Completion Goal – 12-2023)—In process.  Inspector provided with iPad to show 

maps that can be emailed to requestors. 
 

10. Review the recommendations including the road signage and addressing.  That may be 
an option for the district to consider funding. 

a. Recommend district staff provide information on retro-reflective uniform address 
signs for residents to purchase through a grant offer discounted signs with district 
funds offsetting expense.  (Ref. Appendix “B” in the CWPP) 

b. (Completion Goal – 06-2023).  Discussed having demonstrative reflective 
signage for information at May work shop. 
 

11. Defensible space sign. 
a. Consider Dir. Gomez’s suggestion for seasonal signage and include this option for 

district staff to display. 
b. (Completion Goal – 03-2023)—CWPP Sub-committee to discuss at Dec. meeting.  

Discussed having information sign posted at demonstrative site (#6). 
 

12. Provide “General Recommendations” handout for district mailing and District inspector 
to hand out when in the field contacting residents. 

a. Easily obtainable:  District staff to provide printed handouts, printable PDF on 
district website, district-wide mailing.   Working group to provide more details 
and seek board approval. 

b. (Completion Goal – 11-2022) – CWPP Sub-committee to discuss at Dec. meeting.  
Discussed having e-handouts on the website and mentioned in the mailer (#4 & 
#8) accessed through website link or QR code. 

 



Vista Fire Protection District 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  KARLENA RANNALS, ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER 

SUBJECT:  MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT - ADMINISTRATION 

DATE:   February 3, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Activity Summary (January 1 – 31, 2023) 
 
The following highlights my work activities for the reporting period: 
1. Office Establishment – onsite delivery for minor equipment, and office supplies.  Project 

complete, final expense report attached to this report. 
2. Provided Payroll information to the new payroll processor – ADP 
3. Completed change in deposit for tax apportionments from Wells Fargo to County of San Diego 

Pool of Funds  
4. Prepared and posted agenda and supporting reports for January 11, 2023 meeting. 
5. Attended January 11, 2023 Board of Directors meeting 
6. QuickBooks revenue data entry - starting at the beginning of the fiscal year (July 1, 2022 thru 

December 31, 2022).  Unaudited Profit & Loss Statement (12/31/22) and Balance Sheet 
(12/31/22) included with meeting material.  

7. Prepared preliminary agenda and supporting reports for February 8, 2023 meeting. 
8. Prepared Travel and Travel Reimbursement Expense Policies for board approval 
9. Attended meeting with Chief Palmer, Deputy Chief Usher and Director Elliot on 01-26-23 
10. Attended meeting with President Elliott and Vice President Ploetz on January 30, 2023 
 
The highlights do not include emails, phone calls, and other requests for review/comments on 
district topics. 
 
In addition, please note that the financial reports including the investment portfolio will be 
included on a quarterly basis.  A financial report is available upon request anytime. 
 
Total time worked (December 25, 2022 – January 31, 2023):   128.75 hours 

Seven-month total:  503.75 
 
Future Activity 
1. Development of Purchasing Policy 
2. Financial Organization 
3. Website Refresh 
4. Continue reorganization of files 



Office Set Up - Expenses (Report #3)
Final

Description Purchased Date Beg Bal/Expense
1,261.10                    

Wall Décor HomeGoods Jan-23 (102.33)                      
SoundBar/Desk Cover Amazon Jan-23 (73.24)                        
Label Maker/Labels Amazon Jan-23 (150.28)                      
Camera (PC) Amazon Jan-23 (66.81)                        
Monitor Stand Amazon Jan-23 (24.77)                        

-                              
Month to Date Expense (417.43)                      

Total Expense (Previous Reports) (3,738.90)                  
(4,156.33)                  

Budget Authorization 5,000.00                    
Remaining Balance 843.67                       

YTD



Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Fees & Assessments 15,622.46 25,000.00 -9,377.54 62.5%

Interest (All) 105,701.13 88,255.00 17,446.13 119.8%

Other Income 3,277.99

Property Tax 2,356,877.18 4,180,810.00 -1,823,932.82 56.4%

Total Income 2,481,478.76 4,294,065.00 -1,812,586.24 57.8%

Gross Profit 2,481,478.76 4,294,065.00 -1,812,586.24 57.8%

Expense
Administrative 22,931.53 80,437.00 -57,505.47 28.5%

Contractual Services 23,812.50 23,625.00 187.50 100.8%

Fees 4,710.85 53,780.85 -49,070.00 8.8%

Fire Prevention 15,000.00 65,000.00 -50,000.00 23.1%

Fire/EMS Services 2,121,189.47 3,723,595.00 -1,602,405.53 57.0%

Hydrant Maintenance 10,746.00 26,000.00 -15,254.00 41.3%

Information Technology 855.50 3,850.00 -2,994.50 22.2%

Insurance 4,575.00 7,992.00 -3,417.00 57.2%

Maintenance & Repair 14,969.00 54,250.00 -39,281.00 27.6%

Micellaneous 4,703.36 5,000.00 -296.64 94.1%

Office Rental 2,400.00 6,400.00 -4,000.00 37.5%

Personnel 36,934.72 64,364.00 -27,429.28 57.4%

Personnel-Employee Benefit(s) 299.23

Special Projects 1,541.00 50,000.00 -48,459.00 3.1%
Supplies 1,005.88 850.00 155.88 118.3%

Taxes 2,283.74 4,554.00 -2,270.26 50.1%

Training 1,475.00

Total Expense 2,269,432.78 4,169,697.85 -1,900,265.07 54.4%

Net Ordinary Income 212,045.98 124,367.15 87,678.83 170.5%

12:54 PM VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (FY)
02/03/23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2022 through January 2023

Page 1



Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Other Income/Expense
Other Expense

Depreciation 0.00 19,199.00 -19,199.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 19,199.00 -19,199.00 0.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 -19,199.00 19,199.00 0.0%

Net Income 212,045.98 105,168.15 106,877.83 201.6%

12:54 PM VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (FY)
02/03/23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2022 through January 2023

Page 2



Jul '22 - Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

505 · Fire Mitigation Revenue 47,991.52 62,617.00 -14,625.48 76.6%
516 · Interest - FMIT 1,548.16 788.00 760.16 196.5%

Total Income 49,539.68 63,405.00 -13,865.32 78.1%

Gross Profit 49,539.68 63,405.00 -13,865.32 78.1%

Net Ordinary Income 49,539.68 63,405.00 -13,865.32 78.1%

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

869 · Gain/Loss Valuation Change-FMIT 1,557.80

Total Other Income 1,557.80

Net Other Income 1,557.80

Net Income 51,097.48 63,405.00 -12,307.52 80.6%

12:53 PM VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (FY)
02/03/23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July 2022 through January 2023

Page 1



 11:10 AM
 02/02/23
Cash Basis

 VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (FY)
 Balance Sheet

 As of January 31, 2023

Jan 31, 23 Jan 31, 23

ASSETS ASSETS

Current Assets Current Assets

Checking/Savings Checking/Savings

103 · Wells Fargo Checking 162,452.28 106 · Cash in Treasury Fire Mitigation 189,318.56

104 · SDCO Investment Pool 5,843,350.50

109 · Investment - LAIF 912,069.59

Total Checking/Savings 6,917,872.37 Total Checking/Savings 189,318.56

Accounts Receivable

11000 · Accounts Receivable 3,209.99

Total Accounts Receivable 3,209.99

Other Current Assets Other Current Assets

111 · California Asset Management Pro 250,356.80

113 · California Bank & Trust Wealth 5,744,153.63

120 · Prepaid Expenses 2,500.28

132 · Accrued Interest Receivable 35,183.00 133 · Accrued Int Receivable-FMIT 730.57

139 · Security Deposit 800.00 Total Other Current Assets 730.57

Total Other Current Assets 6,032,993.71 Total Current Assets 190,049.13

Total Current Assets 12,954,076.07 TOTAL ASSETS 190,049.13
TOTAL CASH ASSETS 12,954,076.07

LIABILITIES LIABILITIES

Liabilities Equity

Current Liabilities 291 · Fire MItigation Fee Fund 189,318.56

Accounts Payable

20000 · *Accounts Payable 9,133.23

Total Accounts Payable 9,133.23

Other Current Liabilities

210 · Accounts Payable 587,209.46

220 · Salary & Payroll Taxes Payable 7,622.97

Total Other Current Liabilities 594,832.43

Total Current Liabilities 603,965.66

Total Liabilities 603,965.66

Total CASH 12,350,110.41 Total Equity 189,318.56
TOTAL CASH & LIABILITIES 12,954,076.07 TOTAL CASH & LIABILITIES 189,318.56

GENERAL FUND FIRE MITIGATION FUND

 Page 1 of 1



STAFF REPORT 23-03 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  KARLENA RANNALS, ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER 

SUBJECT:  EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT 

DATE:   FEBRUARY 3, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. Adopt Resolution No. 2023-02 approving the Eighth Supplemental Agreement between the Vista Fire 

Protection District (VFPD) and the City of Vista (COV) for Fire Inspection Services and authorize the 
President to execute the contract; and  

2. Approve a FY23 budget adjustment to increase Fire Inspector Fees from $60,000 to $75,000 to adjust 
for the additional costs.  

   
BACKGROUND 
The following is a schedule of the prior board actions in reference to the Fire Inspection Services. 

1. August 10, 2010 the Vista Fire Protection District and the City of Vista entered into an Agreement 
for Fire Suppression, Fire Prevention, Technical Rescue, Emergency Medical Services, Hazardous 
Materials, Administrative Services and Disaster Preparedness; 

2. In 2010 approved the First Supplemental Agreement with the City of Vista for Fire Inspection 
Services. 

3. In 2011 approved the Second Supplemental Agreement with the City of Vista for Fire Inspection 
Services.  

4. In 2012 approved the Third Supplemental Agreement with the City of Vista for Fire Inspection 
Services.  

5. In 2013 approved the Fourth Supplemental Agreement with the City of Vista for Fire Inspection 
Services.  

6. In 2016 approved the Fifth Supplemental Agreement with the City of Vista for Fire Inspection 
Services.  

7. In 2019 approved the Sixth Supplemental Agreement with the City of Vista for Fire Inspection 
Services 

 
The Sixth Supplemental Agreement between VFPD and COV expired June 30, 2022.  The initial request to 
approve the Eighth Supplemental Agreement was calendared for the September 14th Board of Directors 
meeting. The initial request was to increase the quarterly expense for services from the “not to exceed 
fee of $5,000 per month to $7,500 per month” with little information supporting the request. At the 
conclusion of the discussion at that meeting, the Board requested that the Administrative Manager meet 
with the Fire Department leadership to discuss the costs, and obtain the specific items that are included 
in the supplemental agreement. 
 
In the interim and in good faith of the District’s intent to retain the services of the Fire Inspector, the 
Board approved in October 2022 a $15,000 payment for the first quarter (July – September, 2022) of Fire 
Inspector Services while negotiating the Eighth Supplemental Agreement. 
 
 



Staff Report 23-03 
P a g e  | 2 
 
Discussions between Ms. Rannals and Deputy Chief Usher occurred in November/December 
2022 resulting in the tentative agreement included in the agenda material. Also, both the 
District’s and City of Vista legal counsel has concurred with the contract language presented for 
approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Eighth Supplemental Amendment, if approved, will terminate June 30, 2025, and will 
increase the FY 23 Budget from $60,000 to $75,000. 
 
Attachments 

1. Resolution 2023-02 
2. Eighth Supplemental Agreement 

 



RESOLUTION NO.  2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VISTA FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, CALIFORNIA, APPROVING EIGHTH 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
AND THE CITY OF VISTA FOR FIRE INSPECTION SERVICES 

  
  WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Vista Fire Protection District (the “District”), entered into 
an Agreement with the City of Vista (the “City”) for Fire Suppression, Fire Prevention, Technical Rescue, 
Emergency Medical Services, Hazardous Materials, Administrative Services, and Disaster Preparedness 
Services, effective August 1, 2010 (the “Original Agreement”); and, 

 WHEREAS, Paragraph 1.B of the Original Agreement allows for additional services to be separately 
agreed to between District and City, provided that the additional services be in writing and duly approved 
and executed by the respective governing bodies of the City and the District; and, 

 WHEREAS, since entering in to the Original Agreement, the District has continuously approved, 
pursuant to Paragraph 1.B of the same, the hiring of an Inspector from the City of Vista’s Fire Department 
to perform the customary duties of a Fire Inspector in the District to reduce the risk of wildfire; and, 

 WHEREAS, the Board desires to continue to obtain the services of a Fire Inspector. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Vista Fire Protection District does hereby: 

1. Authorize the additional services of a part-time Fire Inspector to be provided by the City at a 
cost not to exceed the following schedule: 

a. Up to $6,250 per month for the term of July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023;  
b. Up to $6,500 per month for the term of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024; and 
c. Up to $6,750 per month for the term of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 

2. Authorize the District President to enter into the Eighth Supplemental Agreement with the City 
of Vista annexed to this Resolution as Attachment “A”. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of the Vista Fire 
Protection District on February 8, 2023 by the following vote: 

AYES:   
NOES:   

 ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
 

 
James Elliott 
President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
Karlena Rannals 
Board Clerk 



 
 

EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT AND THE CITY OF VISTA  

FOR FIRE INSPECTION SERVICES 
 

Eighth Supplemental Agreement Page 1 of 3 July 1.2022 
For Fire Inspection Services 
 
 

THIS EIGHTH SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT is made by and between the chartered City 
of Vista ("City") and the Vista Fire Protection District ("District") to be dated and effective as of July 1, 
2022. City and District are sometimes individually referred to as a "Party" and collectively as "Parties." 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. The Parties entered into an Agreement for Fire Suppression, Fire Prevention, 

Technical Rescue, Emergency Medical Services, Hazardous Materials, Administrative Services, and 
Disaster Preparedness Services dated August 1, 2010 ("Original Agreement"). 

 
B. The Original Agreement was amended by a First Supplemental Agreement effective 

as of July 1, 2010, a Second Supplemental Agreement effective July 1, 2011, a Third Supplemental 
Agreement effective June 12, 2012, and a Fourth Supplemental Agreement effective July 1, 2013, a 
Fifth Supplemental Agreement effective July 1, 2016, a Sixth Supplemental Agreement effective July 
1, 2019, and a Seventh Supplemental Agreement effective July 1, 2022, which together constitute 
the “Existing Agreement.” 

 
C. For the last fifteen years, the District has reimbursed the City for a portion of the City’s 

cost for the part-time services of a Fire Inspector (“Inspector”), employed by the City, so as to provide 
enhanced fire inspection services to the District (“Additional Services”). 

 
D. The District desires to continue to obtain the Additional Services of a Fire Inspector 

from the City. 
 
E. The Parties desire to amend the Existing Agreement to provide for these Additional 

Services as authorized in Section 1.B. of the Original Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

In consideration of the mutual promises and obligations set forth herein below, and other good 
and valuable consideration the receipt of which the Parties hereby acknowledge, District and City 
agree as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
A. City shall provide, as Additional Services, fifty percent (50%) of the services of a single 

Inspector to District for a period of three (3) years commencing on July 1, 2022 and ending on June 
30, 2025, and District shall pay to City fifty percent (50%) of the Inspector's total cost to the City, 
inclusive of salary and all benefits (“Cost of Additional Services”). 

 
B. The Inspector shall also perform such special services related to District's mission as 

assigned by District (“Special Services”), which shall also be included within the scope of the 
Additional Services.  Typical Special Services include, but are not limited to, additional parcel 
inspections, direct property owner or resident engagement (while driving around); fire access road 
inspection; gate inspections (Knox locks, padlocks, etc., fire lane signage, verification of property 
addresses, etc.)   



Eighth Supplemental Agreement Page 2 of 3 July 1.2022 
For Fire Inspection Services 
 

 
C. The Inspector is, and at all times, will remain an employee of City.  City shall be solely 

responsible for payment of the Inspector's compensation and benefits. City shall indemnify and hold 
District harmless from and against any claims by the Inspector arising out of or relating to the 
Inspector's employment with the City.  The foregoing indemnity shall not apply to the extent that such 
losses, expenses, claims, actions, damages or liabilities to which the District may be subject were 
caused by the gross negligence, fraud or willful misconduct of the District and/or its agents. 
 

D. This Eighth Supplemental Agreement may be terminated by either Party, at either 
Party’s convenience, with ninety (90) days advance written notice to the other Party. Except for the 
Special Services specifically described herein, Termination of this Eighth Supplemental Agreement 
shall not affect any of the remaining terms of the Existing Agreement which shall remain in full force 
and effect. 

 
E. Should any portion of this Eighth Supplemental Agreement be inconsistent with prior 

amendments with respect to Additional Services only, this Eighth Supplemental Agreement controls. 
 

SECTION 2. COST OF ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 

A. The Cost of Additional Services shall equal fifty percent (50%) of the City’s total cost 
of the Inspector’s Salary and Benefits for the next three (3) fiscal years commencing on July 1, 2022, 
and ending on June 30, 2025.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Cost of Additional 
Services paid by the District to the City shall not exceed $6,250 per month (“Additional Services 
Cap”). 
 

1. “Salary” is defined as monthly compensation, overtime, and employer related taxes; 
and  

 
2. “Benefits” are defined as pay for vacation, holiday, sick leave, pager pay, 

health/vision/dental insurance, and the CalPERS retirement employer rate. 
 
B. The District agrees to increase the Additional Services Cap, the Cost of Additional 

Services effective July 1, 2023 by 3.5% and shall not exceed $6,500 per month. 
 
C. The District agrees to increase the Additional Services Cap, effective July 1, 2024, by 

four percent (4%), and shall not exceed $6,760 per month. 
 
D. City shall invoice District for the Cost of Additional Services on a monthly basis. 

 
SECTION 3. EXISTING AGREEMENT 

 
Except as specifically modified or changed herein, all of the terms and provisions of the 

Existing Agreement are incorporated herein and shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

 
  



Eighth Supplemental Agreement Page 3 of 3 July 1.2022 
For Fire Inspection Services 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the Parties have executed this 
Fourth Supplemental Agreement as set forth below. 
 
APPROVED BY DISTRICT APPROVED BY CITY 
 
Date: _______________________________ 

 
Date: _______________________________ 

 
Resolution No. ____________ 

 
Resolution No: ____________ 

DISTRICT: 
Vista Fire Protection District 

 
CITY: 
City of Vista, a chartered municipal corporation 

 
 
By: _________________________________ 

 
 
By:__________________________________ 

      James F. Elliott, President      JOHN FRANKLIN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
ATTEST: 

Karlena Rannals, Board Clerk Kathy Valdez, City Clerk  

By:__________________________________ By:__________________________________ 
  
 RISK MANAGEMENT REVIEW: 

Dolores Gascon, Risk Manager 
  

 
By: _________________________________ 

  
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
White and Bright, LLP 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Walter Chung, City Attorney 

By: __________________________________ By: __________________________________ 
Fred Pfister, District Counsel  

 



RESOLUTION No. 2023-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE VISTA FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT APPROVING THE SALE OF SURPLUS REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
2319 PANORAMIC DRIVE, VISTA, CALIFORNIA, 92084 TO BUYERS PRAVEEN 
KUMAR KORATALA AND SREE LAKSHMI KORATALA 

 
WHEREAS, the Vista Fire Protection District, a California Special District (the “District”) is the owner of 

certain real property in San Diego County, California commonly known as 2319 Panoramic Drive, Vista, 
California 92084, and associated with APN 172-112-07-00 (the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 12, 2022, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of the District adopted Resolution No. 

2021-3, declaring the Property as surplus land under the Surplus Property Land Act, found in California 
Government Code sections 54220-54234 (the “Act”), and further noticing the District’s intent to sell the Property; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, under which Act the District is first required, prior to selling the Property, to seek approval 

from the California Department of Housing and Community Development (the “Department”), regarding the 
District’s compliance with Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about May 5, 2022, the Department issued approval to the District regarding the 

District’s Compliance with the Act, thereby allowing the District to proceed with the sale of the Property on 
the open market; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board previously retained the services of Stephanie Cavanaugh, with Realty Masters, to 

market the Property for sale and to solicit purchase offers for the Property on the open market; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has received a purchase offer for the Property from Buyers Praveen Kumar Koratala 

and Sree Lakshmi Koratala (the “Buyers”), to purchase the Property on the  terms and conditions contained in 
the Vacant Land Purchase Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions dated January 6, 2023, and fully executed, 
subject to a Counter Offer No. 1, on January 14, 2023 (collectively, the “Transaction”), a true and correct copy 
of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference; and 

 
WHEREAS, Buyers and the District desires to close the Transaction on the terms of the Transaction, and in 

order to do so, the District must appoint one or more persons as the designated signatory(ies) for the District as to 
any Transaction documents; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Board desires to Confer on Board President James Elliott, Board Director Robert 

Fougner, and District Administrative Manager Karlena Rannals (collectively, the “Authorized Signatories”) the 
authority to sign any Transaction documents on the District’s behalf, and the District further desires to be 
bound by the terms and conditions of any Transaction document henceforth, or previously, executed by the 
Authorized Signatories.  

 
  



Resolution No. 2023-03 
Page 2 of 3 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED, AND RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT, SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The foregoing recitals are adopted as true and correct. 
2. The sale of the Property is hereby approved, on the terms and conditions contained in the 

Transaction. 
3. The District shall cause to be prepared, and executed by the Authorized Signatories, California 

Association of Realtors form “Representative Capacity Signature Disclosure (for Seller 
Representatives)” (the “Representative Disclosure”), and the Representative Disclosure shall 
list all Authorized Signatories. 

4. The Authorized Signatories are authorized, and directed, to execute any documents relevant to 
the Transaction, including, but limited to: the opening and closing of escrow on the sale of the 
Property; payment of all required fees and charges on behalf of the District; the execution of 
any deed and any additional escrow instructions relating to the sale of the Property; and any 
additional documents required by the Transaction. 

5. The District hereby ratifies any documents relating to the Transaction that were previously 
signed, as of the date of this Resolution, by any of the Authorized Signatories. 

6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Vista Fire Protection District on 
February 8, 2023 by the following vote: 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   

ABSTAIN:  
 
 
 

  
James F. Elliott 

President 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
   
Karlena Rannals 
Board Clerk/Secretary 
  



Resolution No. 2023-03 
Page 3 of 3 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Vacant Land Purchase Agreement and Joint Escrow Instructions between Seller Vista Fire 
Protection District and Buyers Praveen Kumar Koratala and Sree Lakshmi Koratala 

 
[Attached] 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8

1/14/2023

1/14/2023

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 34D7B17A-6EBA-4ABE-86CD-E6440C5E5DF8DocuSign Envelope ID: 2609BB36-E889-4757-AFA6-76B3EDFCE0D7





STAFF REPORT 22-04 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  CRAIG USHER, DEPUTY CHIEF / FIRE MARSHAL 

SUBJECT:  ANNUAL WEED ABTEMENT LETTER 

DATE:   FEBRUARY 08, 2023 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the District Board of Directors authorize the attached general letters for weed 
abatement notification in the fire district, letters will be mailed out April 17, 2023. 
 
   
BACKGROUND 
Each year in April, staff compiles a listing of parcels that have been identified to potentially have parcels 
that will need to be cleared of weeds and other flammable vegetation. 
 
Staff provides in person visual inspection o each parcel on the master weed abatement list usually starting 
July 1st.  Follow up notices and inspections can occur if parcel owners are found to be out of compliance.  
In some cases, a parcel can be forcibly abated if required. 
 
Attachment(s) 

1. Weed Abatement Letter 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



200 Civic Center Drive, Vista, California 92084-6275 

Weed Abatement Phone Number (760) 643-5355 

(DATE) 

Property APN:  
Property Address: 

NOTICE TO CLEAN PREMISES 
(Please Note: This is not a notice to grade your property.) 

The Vista Fire Department and the Vista Fire Protection District, in an effort to prevent excess fuels for vegetation 
fires, are providing the following notice and policies to all who own parcels within these jurisdictions.   

WEED ABATEMENT POLICY 
This policy applies to both improved and unimproved land that is subject to weed and brush abatement in the City 
of Vista and the Vista Fire Protection District.  

Native brush and chaparral that have been cleared or thinned previously in the past five (5) years shall be 
modified in the same manner for a minimum distance of one hundred (100) feet measured from the closest 
combustible structure, discounting fences. Fuel modification shall conform to the standard requirements. Further 
information may be obtained at the web address listed at the end of this document. 

Native brush and chaparral that have not been previously cleared or modified in the past five (5) years must be 
assessed on a case-by-case basis to determine whether the removal will conflict with the Federal Endangered 
Species Act of 1993. Questions should be forwarded to Fish and Wildlife Service at (760) 431-9440. 

All property owners and contractors are required to comply with State and Federal regulations regarding native 
vegetation, including the Endangered Species Act.  

GENERAL POLICY (Note: This is not a grading permit.) 
In general, parcels should only be mowed (per Fire Department standards). The Fire Chief or his agents may 
specify the method of clearance for any specific parcel. 

Mowing 
Mowing is the preferred method of clearing. All standing weeds and annual grasses shall be cut to within two (2) 
inches of the finished soil surface with an approved mechanical mower. Mowing shall sever vegetation from its 
roots, not simply lay it over. When mowing is the method of clearing, a second mowing later in the season 
may be necessary.  

Unless prohibited by the Endangered Species Act, all parcels five (5) acres or less shall be completely mowed.  
For parcels over five (5) acres, please contact the Fire Department for guidance at (760) 643-5355. 

Weed/annual grass removal is to be done as close to sidewalks, fences, curbs, streets, and obstructions as is 
possible and practical. Hand work (weed whacker, whip, string trimmer, etc.) may be required to complete the 
task on slopes, banks, or around obstacles. 

Determination of whether the standard has been achieved rests with the Fire Marshal or his designee, with the 
Fire Chief acting as the final point of appeal. 

Disking and grading is not permitted under this policy. 
Property subject to weed abatement NOTICE TO CLEAN PREMISES, which is not cleared to the above 
standards by (Date), the deadline established in this posting, will be cleared by the City or District 

(Continued on next page.) 



 Page 2 of 2 Notice to Clean Premises 
First Notice 
(Date)

contractor, and the cost and administrative charges thereof may be assessed against the land and collected 
through routine property tax billing. A final attempt to contact the property owner will be made prior to parcels 
going to forced abatement. This contact will either be by phone, an in-person meeting, posting a notice on the 
property, or by certified mail. 

If you are clearing a parcel yourself or are using your own contractor, you must complete the clearing prior to 
(Date), the deadline established in this posting. Due to increased fire danger, no extensions will be granted. 
Parcels will be re-inspected beginning (Date), and the property owner will be notified of any deficiency in meeting 
the above policy. If you take no further action within ten (10) days after you are notified of a deficiency, the 
property will be cleared by the City or District contractor and appropriate fees will be charged, including the 
established administrative charge. 

Notice is given that any weeds, grasses, dead trees, and/or dead palm fronds, eucalyptus, and/or pine tree limbs 
within six (6) feet of the ground upon the lot(s) or parcel(s) of land in the City of Vista and within the Vista Fire 
Protection District, California, as described on the address label by County Tax Assessor’s Number, and in the 
street, sidewalk, and parkway adjacent thereto, are public nuisances in that they are a fire hazard or in all 
probability will become a fire hazard. Any rubbish, rubble, discarded asphalt, concrete, auto bodies and parts, or 
other waste material thereon that might interfere with the abatement of the aforementioned public nuisance are 
also a public nuisance. 

Said public nuisances are required to be abated before (Date). If not abated by this date, the Fire Marshal will 
authorize abatement, and the cost thereof may be assessed against the land and collected through routine 
property tax billing. An administrative fee of nine hundred forty dollars ($940.00) per parcel cleared may be added 
to said costs regardless of the size of the parcel. An additional fee of four hundred twenty-three dollars ($423.00) 
may be added if an administrative warrant is required to clear the parcel. Due to increased fire danger, no 
extensions will be granted.  

For parcels located within the city limit of Vista: 
The owner of said land, or authorized agent thereof, may appeal to the City Council of the City of Vista and show 
cause of why the public nuisance should not be abated. Such appeal shall be filed in writing with the City Clerk of 
Vista, 200 Civic Center Dr., Vista, CA, 92084, within ten (10) days from the date of this notice. 

For parcels located outside city limits, but within the Vista Fire Protection District 
(unincorporated county): 
The owner of said land, or authorized agent thereof, may appeal to the Board of Directors of the Vista Fire 
Protection District. Such appeal shall be filed in writing with the Secretary of the Board of the Vista Fire Protection 
District at 955 Vale Terrace Dr., Suite A, Vista, CA 92084 within ten (10) days from the date of this notice. 

This notice is given pursuant to the provisions of Title 2, Chapter 2.36, Section 2.36.020 & Title 8, Chapter 8.60 of 
the Municipal Code of the City of Vista, California, City of Vista Ordinance 2016-14 and the Vista Fire Protection 
District Ordinance 2016-4 and No. 18, California Health & Safety Code § 13879, and Division 12, Part 5 
(commencing with § 14875) and Division 12, Part 6, §§ 14930, 14931). 

Dated and Posted: (Date), by order of the Vista Fire Department Fire Marshal.  

CONTACT: VISTA FIRE DEPARTMENT (760) 643-5355 

Information on vegetation management, an independent contractors list, or the Endangered Species Act is available 
online at www.cityofvista.com/weedabatement. 

http://www.cityofvista.com/weedabatement


Vista Fire Protection District 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
POLICY TITLE Training, Education, and Conferences 

POLICY No. 1050  
ADOPTED   

REVISED  Page 1 of 5 
 

APPROVED: Board of Directors held (Date)  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Karlena Rannals, Board Clerk   
 

1050.1 PURPOSE 
The Vista Fire Protection District is committed to wise and prudent use of its entrusted public funds, to 
conserve District resources and to keep expenses within community standards.  The District is also 
committed to providing effective and responsive services to its constituents.  Further, the District 
recognizes that, for the benefit and in the interests of the District, it is necessary for District staff and 
trustees to attend meetings and to travel in order to conduct District business.   

 
Members of the Board of Directors are encouraged to attend educational conferences and professional 
meetings when the purposes of such activities are to improve District operation.  Hence, there is no limit 
as to the number of Directors attending a particular conference or seminar when it is apparent that their 
attendance is beneficial to the District. 

 
This policy sets forth guidelines for travel and meeting attendance on District business, and for the 
reimbursement of expenses. 

 
1050.1.1 Junkets" (a tour or journey for pleasure at public expense), however, will not be 
permitted. 

 
1050.2 POLICY 

It is the policy of the District to encourage Board development and excellence of performance by reim-
bursing expenses incurred for tuition, travel, lodging and meals as a result of training, educational courses, 
participation with professional organizations, and attendance at local, state, and national conferences 
associated with the interests of the District. 
1050.2.1 The Administrative Manager is responsible for planning for Directors for conference and 
registration expenses, and for per diem.  Per diem, when appropriate, shall include reimbursement of 
expenses for meals, lodging, and travel.  All expenses for which reimbursement is requested by Directors, 
or which are billed to the District by Directors, shall be submitted to the Administrative Manager, together 
with validated receipts. 
1050.2.2 Attendance by Directors of seminars, workshops, courses, professional organization 
meetings, and conferences, shall be approved by the Board of Directors prior to incurring any reimburs-
able costs. 
1050.2.3 Expenses to the District for Board of Directors' training, education and conferences should 
be kept to a minimum by utilizing recommendations for transportation and housing accommodations put 
forth by the Administrative Manager and by: 

1. Utilizing hotel(s) recommended by the event sponsor in order to obtain discounted rates. 
2. Directors traveling together whenever feasible and economically beneficial. 
3. Requesting reservations sufficiently in advance, when possible, to obtain discounted air fares 

and hotel rates. 
  



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
POLICY TITLE Training, Education, and Conferences 

POLICY No. 1050  
ADOPTED   

REVISED  Page 2 of 5 
 

1050.3  A Director shall not attend a conference or training event for which there is an expense 
to the District, if it occurs after they have announced their pending resignation, or if it occurs after an election 
in which it has been determined that they will not retain their seat on the Board.  A Director shall not attend 
a conference or training event when it is apparent that there is no significant benefit to the District. 
1050.4  Upon returning from seminars, workshops, conferences, etc., where expenses are 
reimbursed by the District, Directors will either prepare a written report for distribution to the Board, or 
make a verbal report during the next regular meeting of the Board.  Said report shall detail what was learned 
at the session(s) that will be of benefit to the District.  Such reports will be deemed made if supplied in the 
agenda packets distributed to the Board and requesting parties.



Vista Fire Protection District 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
POLICY TITLE Reimbursement Policy – Travel and Expenses 

POLICY No. 1051  
ADOPTED February 8, 2023  

REVISED  Page 3 of 5 
 

APPROVED: Board of Directors held (Date)  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________________ 
Karlena Rannals, Board Clerk   
 

1051.1 POLICY 
Pursuant to applicable State and Federal law, including AB 1234, District Board Members will be 
reimbursed, or the District may directly pay, for expenses incurred to attend Board approved professional 
or vocational meetings, actual and necessary travel, and incidental expenses while on official Board 
authorized business. Such expenses include, but are not limited to, mileage, meals, actual costs and 
expenses of travel, lodging (while on District business) and educational seminars or conferences necessary 
to serve as a Board Member. 
 
District Board Members will be reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of the District’s Travel and 
Reimbursable Expense Policy with the following exceptions/additions: 

1. Itemized receipts verifying appropriate claimed expenditures will be required, without exception; 
2. Per diem for meals and meal allowances will not apply, and only reasonable and necessary meal 

expenses accompanied by a receipt will be reimbursed; 
3. A full day of business for the purpose of lodging shall also include: 

a. one additional day before the first day of the event if the Board Member spends in excess 
of four (3) hours in the performance of his/her official duties for such event (including, 
travelling, pre-conference gatherings, checking in to hotel and/or the event, etc.); one 
additional day before the first day of the event if the event location is more than 50 miles 
from the District; and 

b. one additional day following the last day of the event if the Board Member spends in 
excess of four (3) hours in the performance of his/her official duties for such event, or one 
additional day after the last day of the event if the event location is more than 50 miles 
from the District. 

4. Requests for reimbursement for expenses associated with family members, spouses, etc. will not 
be considered by the Board; 

5. Conference lodging arrangements will utilize published group discount rates whenever available 
(when published group rates are not available, expenses must be administered in accordance with 
IRS guidelines); and; 

6. Airfare shall be of the coach level travel. All air travel of 1,000 miles or less may be at the 
refundable coach travel level. All air travel over 1,000 miles shall be non-refundable ticketing. 

7. Mileage reimbursement for Board travel shall be based on actual miles driven and total mileage 
reimbursement shall not exceed the applicable coach airfare amount as specified in (6) above. 

 
1051.2 Non-Reimbursable Expenditures 
Vista Fire Protection District maintains a strict policy that expenses in any category that could be perceived as 
lavish or excessive will not be reimbursed, as such expenses are inappropriate for reimbursement by a use of its 
entrusted public funds.  Expenses that are not reimbursable* include, but are not limited to: 

1. Travel insurance 
2. First class tickets or upgrades 



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
POLICY TITLE Reimbursement Policy – Travel and Expenses 

POLICY No. 1051  
ADOPTED   

REVISED  Page 4 of 5 
 

3. One day membership fees for airline clubs, e.g., Admiral’s Club, Crown Club 
4. When lodging accommodations have been arranged by the District and the individual elects to 

stay elsewhere, reimbursement is made at the amount no higher than the rate negotiated by the 
District.  Reimbursement shall not be made for transportation between the alternate lodging and 
the meeting site. 

5. Lodging Upgrades 
6. Limousine travel 
7. Movies, liquor, or bar costs 
8. Spa or exercise charges 
9. Clothing purchases 
10. Toiletry articles 
11. Supplemental travel or car rental insurance 
12. Fines, penalties, or legal fees 
13. Personal entertainment or recreational expenses 
14. Expenses for spouses, friends, or relatives.  If a spouse, friend, or relative accompanies District 

representatives and/or employees on a trip, it is the responsibility of District 
personnel/representative to determine any added cost for double occupancy and related 
expenses and to make the appropriate adjustment in the reimbursement request. 

 
1051.2.1 In addition to the specific requirements of this Policy and the District’s Travel and 
Reimbursable Expense Policy, reimbursement to Board Members shall be governed by the over-arching 
principle that such reimbursements are made from the taxpayers’ dollars. As such, Board Members shall 
refrain from any activity that seeks to “maximize” his/her reimbursement, including, but not limited to, 
obtaining extravagant or unnecessary meals. Notwithstanding any technical compliance with this Policy or 
the Travel and Reimbursable Expense Policy, the Board reserves the right to withhold or recoup any 
reimbursement that the Board determines to be not consistent with this over-arching principle. 
 

1051.3 Travel Expense Reports 
In order to be reimbursed, the Board Member shall present itemized receipts (or a record of mileage) to 
the Clerk of the Board or Administrative Manager on an expense report, provided by the District, on a 
monthly basis, and at no time more than 30 days after incurring the expense. 
1051.3.1 District Board Members will submit a District Travel and Expense Reimbursement Form, 
no more than 30 days after incurring an expense, for all expenses incurred and paid for by the District 
even if there is no reimbursement due the District Board Member. This includes all pre-paid events by the 
Fire District and purchasing card expenses. Board Members need not submit a Travel and Reimbursement 
Statement for any events for which a stipend is requested or events where the District purchases a table 
for both staff and Board Members. 
1051.3.2 The Board of Directors shall also review Travel and Expense Reimbursement Forms within 
60 days of travel completion to ensure compliance with Board Policies. It is recognized that periodically 
Board Members are requested to represent the Fire District at community assigned or approved meetings 
other than those listed in Section 1050. In these instances, the Board President may authorize Board 
Members attendance; however, expenses may only be reimbursed after ratification at the next regular 
Board meeting. 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
POLICY TITLE Reimbursement Policy – Travel and Expenses 

POLICY No. 1051  
ADOPTED   

REVISED  Page 5 of 5 
 

1051.3.3 All expenses that do not fall within the adopted reimbursement policy or IRS reimbursable 
rates are required to be approved by the Board of Directors in a public meeting prior to the expense being 
incurred. Expenses that do not adhere to the adopted reimbursement policy or the IRS reimbursable rates, 
and that do not receive approval from the Board of Directors in a public meeting, shall not be eligible for 
reimbursement. 
1051.3.4 Individual Board Members will sign their Board Travel and Reimbursement Expense Form 
to confirm compliance with Board Policy. 
1051.3.5 Any Board Member may file for mileage reimbursement for attending Board approved 
meetings as referenced in Section 1050. located out of the boundaries of the District, including mileage to 
and from the airport from the District or home, whichever is less. Board Members may file a monthly 
expense report to the District for reimbursement. The mileage reimbursement shall comply with the IRS 
rules for mileage. In accordance with the District’s Travel and Reimbursable Expense Policy, 
documentation reflecting mileage with the most efficient route must be included as reference. The Travel 
and expense Reimbursement Form must be filed by the fifth day of the following month. 
1051.3.6 When Board members travel, it is recommended that travel arrangements be made as far 
out from the travel date as reasonable to maximize the opportunity to obtain the best fare.  Board 
Members shall not be reimbursed for travel agents or third-party companies for travel reservations since 
such services are unnecessary costs to the Fire District. 



STAFF REPORT 23-05 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  KARLENA RANNALS, ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER 

SUBJECT: BUDGET AUTHORIZATION -  

PROCUREMENT OF MANAGED TECHNOLOGY SERVICES CONTRACT 

DATE:   FEBRUARY 3, 2023 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The following budget action is requested for approval and/or modification: 
 

Description FY22/23 
Budget 

Funding  
Request 

Funding  
Source 

Action 
Requested  

Procurement of 
Managed Technology 
Services 

 
$00 

Up to 
$1,000 

 
General Fund 

See 
Recommendation 

Implementation 
Contingency 

 
$00 

 
$500 

 
General Fund 

See 
Recommendation 

Total  $1,500   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the Administrative Manager for the following: 

1. Execute contract with RGM Consulting for Managed Technology Services 
2. Approve monthly expenditure for the remainder of FY23 up to $1,000 
3. Approve Implementation Contingency of $500, if needed 

 
BACKGROUND 
As the District seeks to develop its business processes, and its reliance on a computer system to conduct 
day-to-day operations, it is necessary to seek the services of an IT Consultant for management of its 
technology.   
 
Technical support is essential for several reasons.  A few of the benefits retaining the services of a subject 
matter expert is assisting in implementing the appropriate solutions, such as new hardware or data 
processing software, maintenance of the system, computer security, and the company’s expertise in 
preventing breaches.  
 
Through the professional network of the Administrative Manager, RGM Consulting was recommended as 
a viable resource by Valley Center Fire Protection District to provide such service.   
 
CURRENT SITUATION 
The District’s current need of technical support is for the Office 365 account and computer security.  The 
proposed contract is month-to-month, with a 30-day written notice for termination.  .  The Administrative 
Manager believes that the local company of RGM Consulting (company office in Vista, CA) will serve the 
district’s current needs for a reasonable cost, with the ability to expand services when needed. 



STAFF REPORT 23-06 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  KARLENA RANNALS, ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER 

SUBJECT: BUDGET AUTHORIZATION –  

VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT WEBSITE REFRESH/UPDATE 

DATE:   FEBRUARY 3, 2023 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The following budget action is requested for approval and/or modification: 
 

Description FY22/23 
Budget 

Funding  
Request 

Funding  
Source 

Action 
Requested  

Website 
Update/Refresh 

$50,000 
Special 
Projects 

Up to 
$5,000 

General Fund See 
Recommendation 

Total  $5,000   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize the Administrative Manager for the following: 

1. Execute contract with RGM Consulting for a website update and refresh 
2. Approve project expenditure in FY23 for up to $5,000 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Vista Fire Protection District current website www.vistafireprotectiondistrict.org needs an update.  
The current website is powered by Streamline.  Staff under current contract does not have the hours 
available or necessary skill to update and or develop a new design.   
 
Staff has discussed with RGM Consulting the option of their services to refresh and update the District’s 
website.  Until the website subcommittee can complete preliminary work on design and desired content, 
a final estimated cost is not known; however, through research an average cost for such work is $2,000 - 
$3,000.  By investing in an updated website, it can enhance the user experience, simplify content 
management, and provide improved citizen centric information and customer service to the community, 
while meeting high standards for design quality and visual appeal. At a minimum, the new website must 
be developed with a responsive design that will adjust to all devices. Further, the site must be easily 
maintained without requiring HTML knowledge. 
 
CURRENT SITUATION 
The District’s subcommittee for the Community Wildfire Protection Plan desires to utilize the District’s 
website for community information and outreach.   The FY23 budget included a line item for 
“undesignated special projects” in the amount of $50,000. 
 
With the current restrictions of staff time and the necessary skills, staff recommends the Board authorize 
the services of a third party vendor to update the District’s website, with the goal of launching the redesign 
by July 1, 2023.   

http://www.vistafireprotectiondistrict.org/


STAFF REPORT 23-07 

 
TO:   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  KARLENA RANNALS, ADMINISTRATIVE MANAGER 

SUBJECT: BUDGET AUTHORIZATION –  

DRAINAGE REPAIR - AZTEC LANDSCAPING  

DATE:   FEBRUARY 3, 2023 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The following budget action is requested for approval and/or modification: 
 

Description FY22/23 
Budget 

Funding  
Request 

Funding  
Source 

Action 
Requested  

Repair Drainage $50,000 
(Repair & 
Upgrades) 

$632.20 General Fund See 
Recommendation 

Total  $$632.20   

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize District staff or ad hoc committee representative to authorize the work to be performed by 
Aztec Landscaping, and authorize the payment of such services.   
 
BACKGROUND 
Directors Miller and Ploetz have surveyed the drainage along the District’s emergency access roads.  In 
conjunction with their inspection, they determined that the soil should be removed that is piling up behind 
the sandbags that is causing standing water/flooding along the access roads.   
 
CURRENT SITUATION 
The District’s FY23 budget includes a line item for repair and upgrades of $50,000.  A quote from Aztec 
Landscaping to repair the drainage is attached. 
 
Attachment(s) 

1. Aztec Landscaping 
 



PROPOSAL
Proposal Date: 1/30/2023

Proposal #: 638

SUBMITTED TO
VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
450 S. MELROSE DRIVE
VISTA, CA 9201-6664

PROJECT / LOCATION
VISTA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
Various Access Roads

Submitted By: MP

Estimated By: Manuel Pinto

Total
Acceptance of Proposal ___ The above prices, specifications and conditions are
satisfactory and are hereby accepted. You are authorized to do the work as
specified. Payment will be made on completion of job.
Payment terms: Net 30.

We propose hereby to furnish material, labor, equipment and all fees to complete in accordinance with the above
specifications.

PLEASE SIGN AND DATE THE SECTION BELOW AND RETURN TO OUR OFFICE:

Signature ____________________ Date _________
Note:
This proposal may be withdrawn by us
if not accepted in 30 days.

7980 Lemon Grove Way, Lemon Grove, CA 91945
State Contractor's Lic. No. 642504

Equal Opportunity Employer

Scope of Work Est. QtyRate Total

The following proposal is to remove the extra soil piling up behind the sand
bags around the drains causing standing water/flooding
along the emergency access roads.

Par Valley Access Road  (6 drains) 331.61 94.83
Fabry Lane Access Road (6 drains) 331.61 94.83
Hardell Lane Access Road (14 drains) 731.61 221.27
Catalina and Deeb Access Road (14 drains) 731.61 221.27

$632.20


	1.1.1-VFPD 02-08-23_Agenda_Final
	5.1.1-01-11-2023_Minutes
	5.2.1-January 2023 - Payroll
	5.3.1-VFPD_AP_FY23
	5.4.1-Monthly Activity Report Inspector 02-08-2023
	5.4.2-Monthly Activity Report-Fire Marshal 02-08-2023
	5.4.3-Monthly Activity Report Fire Chief report 02-08-2023
	5.4.4-November 2022 District Report
	5.4.5-December 2022 District Report
	5.4.6-Progress Report CWPP  02-08-2023
	5.4.7-AMR_02-08-2023
	Office Exp Rpt #3

	5.7.1-GF-P&L
	5.7.2-FMF-P&L
	5.4.10-Combined Balance Sheet
	7.1.1-SR 23-03 Feb 08 2023 - 8th Supplemental Agreement
	7.1.2-2023.02_8th Supplemental Amendment - Additional Services
	7.1.3-8th Supplemental Agreement 02-03-2023

	8.1.1-2023.03_Resolution to Sell Panoramic Property
	8.1.2-2319 Panoramic Dr, Vista Lot #1 SCO1.VLPA
	8.1.3-BOUNDARY

	8.2.1-SR 23-04 Feb 08 2023 - Weed Abatement 2023
	8.2.1A-SR 23-04 Feb 08 2023 - First Round First Notice 04-14-22 (template)

	8.3.1-1050 - Travel Policy
	8.3.1 - 1051 - Reimbursement Policy
	8.4.1-SR 23-05 Feb 08 2023 - Budget Authorization_IT Managed Services
	8.4.2-SR 23-06- Feb 08 2023 - Budget Authorization_Website Refresh 2023
	8.4.3-SR 23-07- Feb 08 2023 - Budget Authorization_Aztec Repairs
	8.4.4-SR 23-07 - Feb 08 2023 - Access Road Repair




